HISTORICAL ACTIVITIES

Interested persons in Michigan, Indiana, and Ohio have formed
an organization known as the Anthony Wayne Memorial Associa-
tion to foster recognition of the work of General Wayne in the
establishment of American control over the Old Northwest.

The sixty-sixth annual meeting of the Michigan State Historical
Society was held at Fremont, Michigan, on October 11, 1940. Sec-
retary George N. Fuller reported a membership of 329. Trustees
were elected for 1940-1942 and a program of papers and talks was
presented.

High school students in Indiana have organized the Indiana Ju-
nior Historical Society ‘‘to encourage interest in history among
)

high school pupils’’.
time and place as the annual conventions of the Indiana Historical

Annual meetings are to be held at the same

Society.

The Mississippi Valley Historical Association, at its mid-year
meeting in New York in December, 1940, voted to make Dr. Louis
Pelzer of the Department of History of the State University of
Towa the managing editor of The Mississippi Valley Historical
Review. The Review is a quarterly and was begun in 1914.

The ninety-second annual meeting of the Minnesota Historieal
Society was held at St. Paul on January 20, 1941. The program
ineluded a conference on local history, a luncheon, and an evening
meeting. The speaker in the evening was Dr. Philip Jordan of
Miami University who delivered an address on the Hutchinson
family of singers, with the aid of a quartet to sing the old songs.
Other speakers were Archbishop John Gregory Murray who spoke
on ‘““The Coming of the Church to St. Paul’’ and Mrs. Grace Fland-
rau who discussed ‘‘St. Paul’s First Generation’’.

The Mississippi Valley Historieal Association will hold its an-
nual meeting at Milwaukee, Wisconsin, on April 24-26, 1941, with
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Marquette University as local sponsor. The chairman of the pro-
gram committee is O. Fritiof Ander, of Augustana College, Rock
Island, Illinois. Iowans and former Iowans on the program in-
clude Louis Pelzer of the State University of Iowa, who will
preside at the session on ‘‘The Changing West’’, Bessie L. Pierce
of the University of Chicago, who will preside at the session
devoted to ‘‘The Development of the Great Lakes Region’’, Philip
D. Jordan of Miami University, who will preside at the session
discussing medical history, Carl Wittke, who will deliver the presi-
dential address on ‘‘The American Theme in the Literature of the
Continent’’, and Frank L. Mott, of the University of Iowa School

of Journalism, who will speak on ‘‘Humor in Newspaper Report-
ing and Editing, 1833-1883"".

The annual meeting of the Conference of Historical Societies was
held in the assembly hall of The New-York Historical Society at
New York City on December 27, 1940. At this meeting a Policy
Committee, appointed in 1939, recommended that a new organiza-
tion, The American Association for State and Local History, should
take the place of the Conference of Historical Societies. The re-
port was approved and a constitution for the new organization was
adopted. C. C. Crittenden of Raleigh, N. C., was elected president
of the new organization and Miss Dorothy C. Barck of New York
City was made acting secretary-treasurer. The purpose of the
Association is ‘‘the promotion of effort and activity in the fields of
state, provineial, and local history in the United States and Can-

ada.”” The State Historical Society of Iowa is one of the founding
members of the Association.

IOWA

Under the chairmanship of John C. Bradbury the temporary
organization having in charge plans for a Mahaska County his-
torical society has been actively at work. Special effort is being

directed toward the erection of a building for the keeping of
records and relics.

The officers of the Pocahontas County Historical Society elected




HISTORICAL ACTIVITIES 217

—

at a meeting held on February 4, 1941, at the Pocahontas County
courthouse were: Mrs. J. H. Pollock, president; W. W. Harris,
vice president; A. L. Schultz, secretary-treasurer. Mrs. Matie L.
Baily was made chairman of press and publicity.

The following officers were elected at a meeting of the Jasper
County Historical Society, held in the Newton Congregational
Chureh, on January 29, 1941: president, Fred E. Meredith; vice
president, Mrs. Mark I. Shaw; secretary, W. S. Johnson; assistant
secretary, Faye Wilkinson; and treasurer, W. I. Price. A special
program was presented at the meeting, which included historieal
reviews from six communities prepared by high school students,
musical numbers, and the showing of color films on Towa by K.
Yoshinaga of Newton. A banquet preceded the program and
business meeting.

On November 6, 1940, a bronze tablet on a granite boulder was
unveiled in the Mesquakie Indian cemetery on the reservation near
Tama honoring Chief Push-E-To-Ne-Qua, the last chief of this
group recognized by the United States. The Saec and Fox chief
was born in Poweshiek Village, Iowa County, Towa, in 1842, and
died on the reservation at Tama in 1919. The memorial was
erected by students of the schools of Tama County and by the
Iowa Daughters of the American Revolution. Present at the cere-
mony, representing the tribes, were three sons of the Indian chief,
as well as a grandson, George Young Bear, who acted as inter-
preter for his father, and also gave a tribute to his grandfather.
Mrs. R. P. Ink, historian of the D. A. R., dedicated the monument
as a symbol of good ecitizenship. Dr. Ira D. Nelson, superintendent
of the reservation, spoke on behalf of the Indian Bureau. Others
taking part in the program under the chairmanship of Mrs. W. G.
MacMartin were Mrs. George Wilson, Ben Jones, the Rev. F. C.
Patterson, and W. H. Benedict, principal of the Fox Indian school.

THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF IOWA

Dr. William J. Petersen, Research Associate of the State His-
torical Society of Iowa, read a paper before the Medical History
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Club of the College of Medicine faculty of the State University
of Towa on February 26, 1941. His subject was ‘‘Diseases and
Doectors in Pioneer Iowa’’,

On January 22, 1941, Miss Ethyl E. Martin, Superintendent of
the State Historical Society and President of the Iowa State Divi-
sion of the American Association of University Women, gave an
address on ‘‘The Work of The State Historical Society of Iowa’’
before the Cedar Rapids Branch of the Association. Miss Martin
has been recently named a member of the national membership
committee of the American Association for State and Local His-
tory, representing the State Historical Society of Iowa.

The following persons have recently been elected to membership
in the Society: Mrs. Matie L. Baily, Pocahontas, Towa; Mr. John
E. Belgarde, Independence, Iowa; Mr. Richard F. Boyer, Des
Moines, Iowa; Mr. Waldo W. Braden, Iowa City, Towa; Dr. Le-
Grand Byington, San Francisco, California; Dr. Donald Conzett,
Dubuque, Iowa ; Mr. Lawrence C. Crawford, Iowa City, Iowa; Rev.
W. G. Crowder, Cedar Falls, Towa; Mr. Albert F. Dodge, Ames,
Iowa; Mrs. Catharine Barbour Farquhar, Malvern, Iowa; Mr.
Ernie H. Klink, Belle Plaine, Iowa ; Mr. Elmer E. McMartin, Cas-
talia, Iowa; Mr. Ben F. Martinsen, Clinton, Towa; Mr. Tom E.
Shearer, Des Moines, Iowa; Mr. Louis Shulman, Towa City, Iowa;
Mr. Dean Zenor, Iowa City, Iowa; Mr. Joseph George Duncan,
East Lansing, Michigan; Mr. Norman D. Froiland, Iowa City,
Towa; Mr. Leroy T. Goble, Chicago, Illinois ; Mr. George M. Kirby,
Buffalo, New York; Mr. C. J. Lynch, Jr., Cedar Rapids, Iowa;
Mrs. Margaret E. Nolan, Towa City, Iowa; Mr. Robert G. Smith,
Des Moines, Iowa; Mr. Franklin H. Spurrier, Mount Ayr, Iowa;
and Mr. LeRoy von Lackum, Towa City, Iowa.

Mr. R. S. Beall of Mount Ayr, Towa, has been enrolled as a life
member of the Society.






